
           

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
McMinnville, Oregon

AGENDA
McMINNVILLE CIVIC HALL
200 NE SECOND STREET

September 13, 2016
6:00 p.m. – Informal Dinner Meeting
7:00 p.m. – Regular Council Meeting

Welcome! All persons addressing the Council will please use the table at the front of the Board Room. All
testimony is electronically recorded. Public participation is encouraged. If you desire to speak on any
agenda item, please raise your hand to be recognized after the Mayor calls the item. If you wish to
address Council on any item not on the agenda, you may respond as the Mayor calls for “Invitation to
Citizens for Public Comment.”
  

NOTE:  The Dinner Meeting will be held at the McMinnville Civic Hall and will
begin at 6:00 p.m.  The meeting will include an Executive Session pursuant to
ORS 192.660(2)(d) to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the
governing body to carry on labor negotiations. 

             

CITY MANAGER'S SUMMARY MEMO
 

a.   City Manager's Summary Memorandum
 

CALL TO ORDER
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT – The Mayor will announce that any interested
audience members are invited to provide comments. Anyone may speak on any topic other than: 

1) a topic already on the agenda;
2) a matter in litigation,
3) a quasi judicial land use matter; or,
4) a matter scheduled for public hearing at some future date.

The Mayor may limit the duration of these comments.
 

1. CONSENT AGENDA
 

a.   Consider Minutes of the May 24, 2016 Dinner and Regular Meetings
 

b.   Resolution No. 2016-63:   Approving a contract with Western Financial Group for Municipal
Advisory Services
 

 

2.   APPOINTMENTS
 

a.   Appointment of City Recorder
 



             

3. OLD BUSINESS
 

a.   Bag It Better Update
 

4. RESOLUTIONS
 

a.   Resolution No. 2016-64:  Ratifying a contract with Express Employment Professionals
 

b.   Resolution No. 2016-65:  Approving entering into a contract with Talbot, Korvola & Warwick
LLP for accounting services

 

5. ADVICE / INFORMATION ITEMS
 

a. Reports from Councilors on Committee and Board Assignments
 

b. Department Head Reports
 

c.   Citizen Survey Overview and Timeline
 

d.   Cash and Investment Reports - May and June 2016
 

6. ADJOURNMENT
 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
City Manager's Summary Memorandum

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached memorandum

Attachments
Summary Memorandum 



 
M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
 
DATE:  Sep 7, 2016 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  Martha Meeker, City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Agenda for the September 13th McMinnville City Council Session 
 

 

The following items are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion without separate 
discussion on each item.  If a Council member (or a citizen through a Council member) wishes 
additional time on a particular topic, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately. 
 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 24TH 2016 DINNER AND REGULAR SESSIONS 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH WESTERN FINANCIAL GROUP  

The City is exploring options for issuing debt to finance Alpine Avenue street improvements and 
to replace an existing PERS liability with debt carrying a lower interest rate.  To provide 
guidance during the debt issuance process, it is in the City’s best interest to contract with a 
Municipal Advisor and in the past, the City has successfully utilized Western Financial Group 
(WFG).  As such, the staff is recommending securing their services again.  WFG is a respected 
public finance consulting firm specializing in providing financial counsel to governments and 
non-profits since 1995.   
 

 

APPOINTMENT 

In July, the City advertised for a new City Recorder / Legal Assistant in the News Register and 
on multiple online venues and ultimately received 15 applications for the position.  Reviews and 
an initial round of interviews were conducted by the Mayor, Councilor Hill, the City Manager, the 
City Attorney and the HR Director and these were followed by a subsequent second round of 
interviews conducted by the same group minus the Mayor.  As a result, a primary candidate has 
been identified for consideration by the Council for appointment to the City Recorder position.  
Material supporting the nomination will be presented at the Council session. 
  

 

  CONSENT AGENDA 

 

   REGULAR AGENDA 

 



- 2 - 

PRESENTATION 

Zero Waste - Bag it Better 

On April 26th, the McMinnville chapter of Zero Waste participated in a work session with the Council 
to discuss the “Bag it Better” initiative which is focused on restricting the distribution of single use 
plastic bags within McMinnville.  Since that time, they have continued their outreach with the 
business community to explore the effects on smaller businesses such as small market retailers 
and gas stations.  This presentation will provide feedback on the group’s latest outreach and will 
explore issues seen from other cities in Oregon that have already implemented their own version of 
“Bag it Better” initiatives. 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

Ratifying an Agreement with Express Employment Professionals 

Currently, the Finance Department is experiencing personnel vacancies in the Accounts 
Payable and Ambulance Billing areas.  As a result, the staff is requesting the ability to utilize 
Express Employment Professionals to allow the City to immediately contract for the services of 
experienced office and accounting individuals.  The agreement would also allow for the City to 
immediately contract for similar services, as needs arise in other departments. 
 
Approving an Agreement with Talbot, Korvola and Warwick LLP for Accounting Services 

In recent years, the Finance Department has prepared the City’s fiscal year-end financial 
statements utilizing staff accountants and the assistance of a Certified Public Accountant.  This 
year, due to the departure of the Finance Department’s account II in March and the extended 
time frame involved in finding a back fill, the staff is requesting to contract these services with 
Talbot, Korvola and Warwick LLP.   



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Consider Minutes of the May 24, 2016 Dinner and Regular Meetings

BACKGROUND:

Attachments
May 24, 2016 Minutes 



DRAFT

1

CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF DINNER MEETING of the McMinnville City Council
Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza

McMinnville, Oregon 

Tuesday, May 24, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Rick Olson, Mayor

Recording: Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary

Councilors: Present Excused Absence

Remy Drabkin Larry Yoder Kellie Menke
Kevin Jeffries Alan Ruden

Scott Hill

Also present were City Manager Martha Meeker, City Attorney 
David Koch, Fire Chief Rich Leipfert, Information Systems 
Director Scott Burke, Parks and Recreation Director Jay 
Pearson, Kids on the Block Manager Janet Adams, and a 
member of the news media, Don Iler of the News Register.

DINNER

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:25 p.m. and 
advised that Councilor Ruden would be available at the Regular City Council 
Meeting to provide a quorum for those items that needed a vote.  

FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS:  Fire Chief Leipfert reviewed his presentation 
and explained that the Department currently operates by national standards 
set for combination (paid/volunteer) departments.  This standard requires a 
four-person crew to be assembled before entering an active fire scene.  He 
explained that the Department’s union members have raised concerns about 
safety issues involved with a two-person engine company, even though staff 
would not enter an active fire scene without a four-person team assembled.  
He advised that policy had not yet been written on this subject.  He stated 
he wanted the City Council to understand the challenges that staff has 
regarding staffing.  

Mayor Olson said he understood from the Chief’s comments that he was asking 
the Council to have the faith and confidence in him ability to implement 
needed changes and that nothing is, as yet, set in stone.  

APPOINTMENTS TO THE McMINNVILLE AFFORDABLE HOUSING TASK FORCE:  City Manager 
Meeker reviewed the recommended names of individuals for the Affordable Task 
Force Committee.  

OVERVIEW OF NEW CITY WEBSITE:  Information Systems Director Burke gave a 
brief overview of the City’s new website and advised the website would “go 
live” on June 1, 2016.  Web address will be www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov

ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Olson adjourned the Dinner meeting at 6:55 p.m.

Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary



DRAFT

2

CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF DINNER MEETING of the McMinnville City Council
Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza

McMinnville, Oregon 

Tuesday, May 24, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Rick Olson, Mayor

Recording: Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording Secretary

Councilors: Present Excused Absence

Remy Drabkin Larry Yoder Kellie Menke
Kevin Jeffries Alan Ruden Scott Hill

  (by telephone until 7:38 p.m.)

Also present were City Manager Martha Meeker, City Attorney 
David Koch, Fire Chief Rich Leipfert, Police Chief Matt 
Scales, IS Director Scott Burke, and members of the news 
media, Don Iler of the News Register, Jerry Eichten of MCM,
and Dave Adams of KLYC Radio.

AGENDA ITEM

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m. and welcomed all in attendance.  He noted for the 
record that Councilors Hill, Menke, and Ruden had been 
excused from the evening’s meeting, although to have a 
quorum for the evening’s meeting, Councilor Ruden was 
listening and available for comment and voting by phone.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilor Yoder let the pledge of 
allegiance.

INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Olson 
asked for comments from citizens on topics not on the 
evening’s agenda.  Mark Davis, 652 SE Washington Street, 
spoke to the City Council about the budget process.  Mr. 
Davis was at the May 18, 2016 Budget Meeting and noted that 
a vast majority of the meeting time was spent on less than 
1/10th of one percent of the $100,000,000 budget.  Mr. Davis 
would like to be optimistic that the Budget Committee 
understands the well written budget document.  If that is 
the case, he would like to see a written policy on the 
money expended for community groups.  For example, a time 
limit of five to ten minutes per person be adopted.  More 
than 2 hours of a three and a half hour meeting were spent 
on those presentations.

Mayor Olson stated the Council has discussed that and 
appreciated Mr. Davis’ comments.



DRAFT

3

Consent Agenda:  Councilor Yoder MOVED to approve the items 
within the Consent Agenda, including the minutes of the 
February 3, 2016 Dinner and Regular Meeting minutes, the 
minutes of the March 2, 2016 City Council retreat, and 
Resolution No. 2016-29, a Resolution regarding the award of 
the contract for the construction of the 2016 Street Repair 
& Repaving Transportation Bond Project, Project 2016-5; 
SECONDED by Councilor Drabkin,. Motion PASSED unanimously.  

   1 NEW BUSINESS

1 a PRESENTATION:  VISIT MCMINNVILLE BUDGET PRESENTATION:  
Mayor Olson welcomed Visit McMinnville Executive Director 
Jeff Knapp.  Mr. Knapp, 1036 NE Cowls Street, stated he 
would like to present Visit McMinnville’s 2016-2017 fiscal 
year Business Plan and budget and an update of the past 
year.  Mr. Knapp introduced the Chair of Visit McMinnville, 
Erin Stephenson, and Marketing Manager, Kitri McGuire.  
Copies of the presentation were provided for each 
Councilor.  Mr. Knapp informed the Council of Visit 
McMinnville’s Board Members and gave their occupations.  

Mr. Knapp described the purpose and mission of Visit 
McMinnville and how success is measured through the 
Transient Lodging Tax (TLT) collections, occupancy, and 
traffic to the Visit McMinnville website.

Fiscal year 2016 has been a very busy year for Visit 
McMinnville. The website was launched and had over 2500 
unique visits since February 2016.  A variety of print ads, 
TV ads, and digital ads have been produced and distributed 
through various media outlets such as Comcast, Xfinity, 
Pandora, Oregon Public Broadcasting, and print magazines.  
The Wine Walk has begun with free passports for 
participants.  It is a safe and fun way for visitors to 
enjoy wine tasting.  The Walk represents a partnership 
between the downtown and the museum.  They have just 
completed their first “mobile app”.  The app will track the 
progress on the “trail.”  The passport has been designed in 
a unique size that will be included as an insert in 
magazines.  

Visit McMinnville has launched a community awareness 
campaign that will market Visit McMinnville within the 
community.  As part of their 2017 Goals and Objectives, 
they are saturating Oregon with Visit McMinnville’s
message.  The intent is to increase the TLT proceeds by at 
least nine percent; have at least 250,000 “hits” on Visit 



DRAFT

4

McMinnville’s website; and, consistent with their message, 
have 40 percent of the people in our state see three of the 
things Visit McMinnville offers.  During the shoulder and 
low seasons, Mr. Knapp said that they will launch a 
promotional campaign to make tourism year-round.  The 
organization is expanding its current branding campaign 
through radio, television, and print.  A new video will be 
launched and a second mini-guide will be printed to take 
the organization to the end of fiscal year 2017-18.  

Mr. Knapp explained that their 2017 budget is very 
aggressive in nature and with their campaign to increase 
TLT funds by nine percent; they will realistically have 
more than the projected $500,000.  The budget includes 
spending reserve funds in order to implement as much 
marketing as possible in the next year. 

Responding to an inquiry from Councilor Yoder, Mr. Knapp 
explained that Visit McMinnville started this year with two 
years of funding and a carryover of about $290,000.  They 
have completed a three-year, long-term budgeting forecast 
with their Finance Manager Scott Greenstone and they have 
determined that this is where they need to be.  
Additionally, the reserve policy is to hold back $75,000; 
to cover three months of operations.

Mayor Olson advised the Council that a vote was needed to 
approve Visit McMinnville’s 2016 – 17 Business Plan.  
Councilor Drabkin MOVED to approve Visit McMinnville’s 2017 
Business Plan; SECONDED by Councilor Jeffries.  Motion 
PASSED unanimously.

2 d APPOINTMENTS TO THE McMINNVILLE AFFORDABLE HOUSING TASK 
FORCE:  Mayor Olson explained that the following citizens 
to appointed to the McMinnville Affordable Housing Task 
Force:  Sherl Hill, Jon Johnson, Elise Hui, Jeff Sergeant, 
Derrick Price, and Alan Ruden.  Councilor Drabkin MOVED to 
appoint those individuals to the McMinnville Affordable 
Housing Task Force; SECONDED by Councilor Yoder.  Motion 
PASSSED unanimously.  

LOSS OF QUORUM:  Quorum was lost at 7:38 p.m.

2 b FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS DISCUSSION:  Chief Leipfert 
advised that there have been concerns voiced from the union 
employee group regarding fire scene safety, administrative 
responsibilities, and the role of the Battalion Chief.  He 
referenced his memorandum located in the Council’s 
informational packet and advised that the Department, 



DRAFT

5

because of heavy call volume, is relying more and more on 
the Department’s volunteers.  

Chief Leipfert discussed proposed changes to the staffing 
model that the Department currently uses.  These would 
include changing from current practice of having a three-
person engine respond to a fire (currently including the 
Battalion Chief [BC]) to a two-person engine with a 
lieutenant and an operator.  The BC would be moved to a 
“chief vehicle” and be available to act as incident 
commander and to manage resources on the fire scene and 
would continue to be responsible for the safety of the 
crews on the incident.  The engine company would continue 
to respond to all calls as is current practice.  If the 
call is to a working fire, all EMS units would respond to 
assist in the firefighting efforts.  Current response times 
allow enough personnel to enter into the fire safety, even 
without the BC.  This practice would continue with the two-
person engine model, except ambulance personnel, if 
available, would swing over to the engine at the station, 
before going en-route.  This would enable the Department to 
have a four-person engine company respond to a call, 
without counting the BC as part of the minimum staffing 
levels.  This model would allow for a solid, continuous 
incident manager on scene at all times.  Currently, the BC 
is managing strategic operations as well as making tactical 
decisions while donning breathing apparatus and entering 
the fire with the crew.  

Chief Leipfert explained that the new model would include 
the creation of an Acting in Capacity (AIC) role for 
qualified personnel.  If the Lieutenant needs to fill in 
for the BC, the AIC will be trained and qualified to fill 
in for the Lieutenant.  

Chief Leipfert discussed the “pros” and “cons” of the 
proposed model which include:  improved scene safety and 
command continuity; fewer delays in a Chief Officer 
arriving to the scene; more opportunities for partnerships 
with mutual aid agencies; improved supervision of outlying 
stations; improved opportunities for line staff to take
vacation time; reduced mandatory holdover due to sick 
leave; reduction of work back requirements; clearing the
lines of authority between the BC and the Lieutenant; 
increased BC administrative productivity; more upward 
mobility opportunity through the creation of the AIC 
position; improved command equipment continuity; and the 
BC’s availability for single resource responses frees up 
other units.



DRAFT

6

“Cons” that Chief Leipfert pointed out included studies 
done by the International Association of Fire Fighters 
(IAFF) that show potential for increased risk due to 
staffing less than a four-person fire apparatus; perception 
that it reduces opportunity for engine shifts for line 
staff; does not increase staffing; increases the 
possibility of arriving on scene with a two-person engine 
and needing more staff immediately; and the City’s union 
does not support the changes.  

In summary, Chief Leipfert stated that while this is not 
the best solution, given the challenges the Department 
faces, this model provides the best opportunities.  

Following a question and answer period, Mayor Olson asked 
for audience participation in the discussion.

Sam Keeran, President of the McMinnville Fire Fighters
(AIFF 1099), advised that his concern was safety related 
issues associated with a two-person engine crew.  With 
medical calls increasing, staff’s availability to respond 
with a full company goes down.  He stated that in his 
opinion, this model would greatly reduce effectiveness at
the fire scene and affects the safety of the firefighters.  
He felt that staff should be added.

Brian Smith spoke as a concerned citizen about the fire 
service in McMinnville.  He stated he would be opposed to 
any proposal that would staff a first out two-person 
engine.  He acknowledged the community’s support for the 
Fire Department and suggested that a levy for additional 
funding be put out to the voters.  

Karl Kinney spoke about the impact of the increase in work 
load for a two-person engine company.  He suggested that 
the IAFF could assist in obtaining SAFER grants.  He 
emphasized that this is a moral imperative and suggested 
the hiring of three additional personnel.  

Dean Yoder, 673 NW Jefferson, stated that he was a 
firefighter for Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue.  He 
reminded the Council that several years ago, the citizens 
were asked to come together to prioritize their concerns.  
He remembered that public safety was the most important.  

Following additional discussion, Mayor Olson stated that he 
believed there was a lot of agreement in terms of what 
needed to happen and additional personnel was needed.  He 



DRAFT

7

asked that the Chief continue to work on ways to utilize 
grants and other funding options to address the staffing 
needs.  He stated that a Work Session on this matter was 
needed.

City Manager Meeker suggested August as a time frame for 
the Work session.  

Mayor Olson thanked Chief Leipfert and all of those who 
spoke on the topic for their thoughtful comments.

2 c PRESENTATION OF KIDS ON THE BLOCK AND AFTER SCHOOL KIDS 
PROGRAMS:  Mayor Olson advised that the Kids on the Block 
presentation originally scheduled for this meeting had been 
postponed until all of the Council can be present.

3 ADVICE / INFORMATION ITEMS

3 a REPORTS FROM COUNCILORS ON COMMITTEE AND BOARD ASSIGNMENTS:  
Each Councilor present gave a brief report.

3 b DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS:  Each department head present gave 
a brief report.

4 ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Olson adjourned the meeting at 8:51 
p.m.

Rose A. Lorenzen, Recording



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject: Debt issuance financial advisory

services
From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016-63:   Approving a contract with Western Financial Group for Municipal Advisory
Services
 

BACKGROUND:
The City is exploring options for issuing debt to finance Alpine Avenue street improvements and to
replace an existing PERS liability with debt carrying a lower interest rate.  It is in the City's best interest to
contract with a Municipal Advisor to provide guidance during the debt issuance process.  In the past, the
City has contracted with Western Financial Group (WFG) to provide this guidance.  WFG is a respected
public finance consulting firm that specializes in providing financial counsel to governments and is well
qualified to provide municipal advisory services to the City.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution approving the contract with
Western Financial Group for municipal advisory services

Attachments
Western Financial Resolution 
WFG Engagement Letter 



Resolution No. 2016-xx

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 63

A Resolution approving a contract with Western Financial Group for Municipal 
Advisory Services

RECITALS:

The City is exploring options for issuing debt to finance Alpine Avenue street 
improvements and to replace an existing PERS liability with debt carrying a lower 
interest rate.  To provide guidance during the debt issuance process, it is in the City’s 
best interest to contract with a Municipal Advisor. 

In the past, the City has contracted with Western Financial Group (WFG) to 
provide this guidance. WFG is a respected public finance consulting firm that has 
specialized in providing financial counsel to governments and non-profits since 1995.  
WFG is well qualified to provide municipal advisory services to the City. 

Professional services provided by WFG include assisting with evaluation of 
potential funding sources, providing advice on structuring, pricing, and sale of financings, 
and coordinating and carrying out bond sales or bank placements.

The City desires to enter into a contract with Western Financial Group to provide 
municipal advisory services related to the City’s issuance of debt.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a contract between the City of McMinnville and Western 
Financial Group is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract 
with Western Financial Group.

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until modified, revoked, or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 13th day of September 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 13th day of September 2016.

   MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

      CITY ATTORNEY



 
 
August 3, 2016 
 
Marcia Baragary, Finance Director 
City of McMinnville 
230 NE Second Street 
McMinnville OR 97128 
 
RE: Engagement Letter 
 
Dear Marcia 
 
This letter specifies the terms of the engagement between Western Financial Group, LLC 
(“WFG”), located in Portland and the City of McMinnville (“McMinnville” or “the City”). 
 
Scope of Municipal Advisory Activities to be Performed 
 
Upon request of the City, WFG will: 

• Assist the City with development of financing plans and the evaluation of potential 
funding sources for capital projects 

• Provide professional advice on structuring, pricing, and sale of the City’s financings 
• Coordinate and carry out competitive or negotiated bond sales or bank placements, 

including review of bond and offering documents, coordination of the financing team, 
rating agency relations and rating agency presentation, draft RFPs, solicit bids, negotiate 
with banks, assist with closings 

• Attend City meetings, as requested, held to discuss or explain financing plans, debt 
management and debt issues 

• Provide professional advice on a specific project basis, and general consultation on public 
finance matters 

• Provide additional services as requested by the City 
• If acting in the capacity of an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor (“IRMA”) with 

regard to the IRMA exemption of the SEC Rule, WFG will review all third party 
recommendations submitted to WFG in writing by the City. 

 
Term of Engagement Agreement 
 
The commencement date of the agreement is the date this Agreement is executed. 



  
Termination of Engagement Agreement 
 
Either the City or WFG may terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notice to the 
other party.  If the Agreement is terminated by the City without cause, WFG will be 
compensated for its time to the date of termination for services rendered.  
 
Compensation and Out-of-Pocket Expenses 
 
For serving as Financial Advisor on the bank placement to fund McMinnville’s PERS 
transitional liability, WFG proposes a fixed fee of $8,500.  This includes services provided to-
date.   
 
For serving as Financial Advisor on the bank placement for McMinnville’s URA, WFG proposes 
a fixed fee of $8,500.  This includes services provided to-date.   
 
If both of the PERS liability and URA financings are done as a bank placement, at the same time, 
with two series, we would propose a fixed fee of $15,000.   
 
WFG will be glad to provide quotes for other financings upon request as addendum to this 
agreement.  Without a fixed fee arrangement, we would bill hourly.  WFG’s hourly rate is $230 
during fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, adjusted on July 1, 2017 and annually thereafter based 
on the Portland CPI.  For services provided outside of a fixed-fee arrangement, or on fixed fee 
arrangements where a financing is abandoned after work has started, WFG will bill for services 
rendered based on its hourly rate. 
 
Out-of-pocket expenses including travel expenses (e.g. rating agency presentation), mileage, 
conference call charges, and third-party expenses will be invoiced to the City at cost with no 
mark-up.  We anticipated very little to no out-of-pocket expenses if no rating trip takes place. 
 
Fiduciary Duty 
 
WFG is registered as a Municipal Advisor with the SEC and Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (“MSRB”).  As such, WFG has a fiduciary duty to McMinnville and must provide both a 
Duty of Care and a Duty of Loyalty that entails the following. 



 
Duty of Care: 

a) exercise due care in performing its municipal advisory activities; 
b) possess the degree of knowledge and expertise needed to provide McMinnville with 

informed advice; 
c) make a reasonable inquiry as to the facts that are relevant to McMinnville’s 

determination as to whether to proceed with a course of action or that form the basis for 
any advice provided to McMinnville; and 

d) undertake a reasonable investigation to determine that WFG is not forming any 
recommendation on materially inaccurate or incomplete information; WFG must have a 
reasonable basis for:  

i. any advice provided to or on behalf of McMinnville;  
ii.  any representations made in a certificate that it signs that will be reasonably 

foreseeably relied upon by McMinnville, any other party involved in the 
municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product, or investors in 
McMinnville securities; and 

iii.  any information provided to McMinnville or other parties involved in the 
municipal securities transaction in connection with the preparation of an official 
statement. 

 
Duty of Loyalty: 
 
WFG must deal honestly and with the utmost good faith with McMinnville and act in 
McMinnville’s best interests without regard to the financial or other interests of WFG.  WFG 
will eliminate or provide full and fair disclosure (included herein) to McMinnville about each 
material conflict of interest (as applicable).  WFG will not engage in municipal advisory 
activities with McMinnville as a municipal entity, if it cannot manage or mitigate its conflicts in 
a manner that will permit it to act in McMinnville’s best interests. 
 
Conflicts of Interest and Other Matters Requiring Disclosures 
 

• As of the date of the Agreement, there are no actual or potential conflicts of interest that 
WFG is aware of that might impair its ability to render unbiased and competent advice or 
to fulfill its fiduciary duty.  If WFG becomes aware of any potential conflict of interest 
that arises after this disclosure, WFG will disclose the detailed information in writing to 
McMinnville in a timely manner. 

• The fee paid to WFG increases the cost of investment to McMinnville.  The increased 
cost occurs from compensating WFG for municipal advisory services provided. 

• During the term of the municipal advisory relationship, this agreement will be promptly 
amended or supplemented to reflect any material changes in or additions to the terms or 
information within this agreement and the revised writing will be promptly delivered to 
McMinnville. 



• WFG does not have any affiliate that provides any advice, service, or product to or on 
behalf of the client that is directly or indirectly related to the municipal advisory activities 
to be performed by WFG; 

• WFG has not made any payments directly or indirectly to obtain or retain the City’s 
municipal advisory business; 

• WFG has not received any payments from third parties to enlist WFG’s recommendation 
to McMinnville of its services, any municipal securities transaction or any municipal 
finance product; 

• WFG has not engaged in any fee-splitting arrangements involving WFG and any provider 
of investments or services to McMinnville; 

• WFG has a potential conflict of interest from compensation for municipal advisory 
activities to be performed, that is contingent on the size or closing of any transactions as 
to which WFG is providing advice (e.g. a refunding will increase the fee to WFG and a 
complete financing will generate income to WFG); 

• WFG does not have any other engagements or relationships that might impair WFG’s 
ability either to render unbiased and competent advice to or on behalf of the City or to 
fulfill its fiduciary duty to the City, as applicable; and 

• WFG does not have any legal or disciplinary event that is material to the City’s 
evaluation of the municipal advisory or the integrity of its management or advisory 
personnel. 

 
Legal Events and Disciplinary History 
 
WFG does not have any legal events and disciplinary history on its Form MA and Form MA-I, 
which includes information about any criminal actions, regulatory actions, investigations, 
terminations, judgments, liens, civil judicial actions, customer complaints, arbitrations and civil 
litigation.  McMinnville may electronically access WFG’s most recent Form MA and most 
recent Form MA-I filed with the Commission at the following website: 
www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html. 
  
There have been no material changes to a legal or disciplinary event disclosure on any Form MA 
or Form MA-I filed with the SEC. 
 
Recommendations 
 
If WFG makes a recommendation of a municipal securities transaction or municipal financial 
product or if the review of a recommendation of another party is requested in writing by 
McMinnville and is within the scope of the engagement, WFG will determine, based on the 
information obtained through reasonable diligence of WFG whether a municipal securities 
transaction or municipal financial product is suitable for McMinnville.  In addition, WFG will 
inform McMinnville of:   

• the evaluation of the material risks, potential benefits, structure, and other characteristics 
of the recommendation; 



• the basis upon which WFG reasonably believes that the recommended municipal 
securities transaction or municipal financial product is, or is not, suitable for 
McMinnville; and 

• whether WFG has investigated or considered other reasonably feasible alternatives to the 
recommendation that might also or alternatively serve the City’s objectives. 

 
If McMinnville elects a course of action that is independent of or contrary to the advice 
provided by WFG, WFG is not required on that basis to disengage from McMinnville.  
 
If there are any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact me at 503-249-
1412.  If the foregoing terms meet with your approval, please indicate your acceptance by 
executing both copies of this letter and returning one copy. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Western Financial Group 

 

           
By: __________________________________ 
                    Kieu-Oanh Nguyen, Partner 
 
Agreed to and Accepted as of _________[Date]: 
 
City of McMinnville 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
                                                                   [Individual Name, Title] 
 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Appointment of City Recorder

BACKGROUND:



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
APPOINTMENTS

BACKGROUND:



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Bag It Better Update

BACKGROUND:
Please see the attached memorandum from City Manager Martha Meeker.

Attachments
Bag it Better 9-13-2016 PDF 



 

 
 

City Council - Regular 

Meeting Date:  09/13/2016 

Subject: “Bag it Better” Initiative 

From: Martha Meeker, 
City Manager 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Zero Waste presentation on the restriction of single use carry out plastic bags.  

 
BACKGROUND: 
On April 26th, the McMinnville chapter of Zero Waste participated in a work session with 
the Council to discuss the “Bag it Better” initiative which is focused on restricting the 
distribution of single use plastic bags within McMinnville.  Since that time, they have 
continued their outreach with the business community to explore the effects on smaller 
businesses such as small market retailers and gas stations.  This presentation will 
provide feedback on the group’s latest outreach and will explore issues seen from other 
cities in Oregon that have already implemented their own version of “Bag it Better” 
initiatives. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Below is a summary of the main issues surrounding the “Bag it Better” campaign and 
follows the same vein of discussions seen in other Oregon cities such as Ashland, 
Corvallis, Eugene, Portland and most recently Forrest Grove. 
 
Why implement a restriction on single use carryout plastic bags? 
The goal of restricting single use carryout bags would be to alter the culture of 
“single use and throw away” while also addressing litter and the practical issues 
surrounding single use plastic bags clogging machinery.  
 
What plastic bags would be prohibited? 
Single use plastic carryout bags provided at the point of sale.  Currently, Ashland, 
Eugene, Forrest Grove and Portland use 4 mils as the breaking point between 
reusable and single use.  Corvallis is the other city in Oregon with regulations 



prohibiting single use plastic bags but they chose to use 2.25 mils.  A ‘mil’ is an 
industry term equaling one thousandth of an inch and Zero Waste will have 
samples of both types of bags for the Council’s review. 
 
What businesses would be affected? 
Any store or vendor located within or doing business within the geographical limits 
of the city that sells or offers for sale goods at retail would be affected.  Discussion 
in this area from other cities has generally focused on whether to exclude small 
businesses, and Zero Waste will provide feedback from various local businesses 
who employ less than 10 full-time employees during the Council presentation. 

 
What about farmers’ markets, street fairs, festivals and events? 
Currently, it is envisioned retail vendors at these events would need to comply with 
the restriction. 
 
Would any businesses be exempt from the restriction? 
Food providers would be able to distribute single use plastic carryout bags for the 
purpose of transporting hot prepared take-out foods and prepared liquids intended for 
consumption away from the food provider’s premises.  Several cities also added a 
clause allowing an establishment to petition the city manager or designee for a one 
year exemption if they could show an undue hardship.  Should the Council wish to 
follow their lead, the definition of “undue hardship” would need to be established. 
 
Would paper bags still allowed? 
Yes.  However, it would be recommended that all paper bags provided at checkout 
be made of 40% recycled content and 100% recyclable and be capable of 
composting completely.  Because the goal of the “Bag it Better” initiative is to move 
individuals away from single use items, a charge to the individual customer is being 
recommended for paper bags.  The amount of this fee is an area that differs among 
cities that have implemented a bag restriction and initial recommendations are for a 5 
cent charge.  Another option would be to provide flexibility to a business by allowing 
them the option of recouping the cost of providing a paper bag versus mandating the 
cost be forwarded to the consumer. 
 
Are any customers exempt from the paper bag charge? 
Yes.  The recommendation is to waive the fee for customers who meet the eligibility 
requirements for the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) program.  Also, the Council 
may consider if they wish to provide for other low income citizens by distributing a 
certain number of bags at no cost during the initial roll out of this initiative or look to 
define “low income” for inclusion in an overall exemption similar to the one being 
recommended for those participating in the WIC program.  Zero Waste will address 
this during their presentation. 
 

  



What if a business refuses to comply with the ordinance? 
As with any local ordinance, citations can be issued and fines imposed should the 
Council wish.  The goal though would be to work with businesses through education 
and discussion to ensure compliance prior to the issuance of citations.  As such, in 
addition to outlining enforcement actions, a roll out program would need to be fully 
developed to ensure information is well disseminated throughout the community.   



Bag It Better – Features of ordinances in OR cities 

Feature Notes 
Oregon cities involved Portland – city code chapter 17.103 

Corvallis – Ordinance #2013-03 
Eugene – Ordinance #20498 
Ashland – Ordinance #3094 (closely follows Eugene) 
Forest Grove – draft ordinance (closely follows Eugene) 

References ASTM 6400 standard All cities 
Defines paper bag as 
- 100% recyclable 
- 40% post-consumer content 

All cities 

Definition of retail establishment (Corvallis) Does not include business where primary 
product is prepared food or drink 

Definition of reusable bag Either cloth, or: 
- heavy plastic > 2.25 mils thick (Corvallis) 
- plastic > 4.0 mils thick (Eugene/Ashland/FG/PDX) 

Exceptions (Corvallis/PDX) Plastic, in-store produce or bulk bags, 
prescription bags 
(Eugene/Ashland/FG) Have a more detailed list of 
exceptions for in-store bags 

Regulation by city manager Corvallis only 
Plastic carry-out grocery bags not 
allowed at city-run facilities, city-
sponsored events, special events 

Eugene/Ashland/Forest Grove 

Must charge for paper bags Corvallis/Eugene/Forest Grove = 5c 
Ashland = 10c 
(no charge required in PDX) 

WIC exception – must provide 
reusable or paper bags 

All cities 

Exception for prepared food 
carry-out 

Eugene/Ashland/Forest Grove 
Corvallis exempts food establishments in its definitions

Hardship exception by written 
request from a business, good for 
up to 1 year 

Eugene/Ashland/Forest Grove 
(Forest Grove is also considering exempting all retailers 
with less than 10 FTE) 

Each violation is considered a 
separate offense 

Corvallis 

Phase-in periods (Corvallis) For retailers > 50 FTE upon enactment; for 
retailers < 50 FTE six months later 
(Eugene/Ashland) Enactment begins 6 months after first 
adopted 
PDX – effective for groceries and stores > 10,000 sq ft as 
of March 1, 2013; for all retailers as of October 1, 2013 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject: Contract with Express Employment

Professionals
From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016-64:  Ratifying a contract with Express Employment Professionals

BACKGROUND:
Due to an unanticipated shortage of staff resources in the Finance Department, it was necessary for the
City to enter into an agreement with Express Employment Professionals, a local employment agency. 
Specifically, the Accountant I, who is responsible for accounts payable, is leaving her employment at the
City to take a job with ODOT.  Contracting with the employment agency enabled the City to immediately
bring in an experienced accountant, enabling the Finance Department to process vendor payments in a
timely manner.

The City is moving forward with recruiting and hiring for the open position and expects to fill the position
by mid-November.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the contract with Express Employment Professionals

Attachments
Express Resolution 
Express Employment Contract 



Resolution No. 2016-xx

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 64

A Resolution ratifying a contract with Express Employment Professionals

RECITALS:

Due to the unanticipated shortage of staff resources in the Finance Department, 
it was necessary for the City to enter into an agreement with Express Employment 
Professionals, a local employment agency.  

The agreement with Express Employment Professionals allows the City to 
immediately contract for the services of experienced office and accounting individuals. 
The agreement also allows the City to immediately contract for similar services, as 
needs arise in other departments.

The City is moving forward with recruiting and hiring to fill open positions.  In the 
meantime, the City will continue to work with Express Employment Professionals to 
ensure that critical services provided by the Finance Department are not disrupted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a contract between the City of McMinnville and the Express 
Employment Professionals is hereby ratified.

2. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until modified, revoked, or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 13th day of September 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 13th day of September 2016.

   MAYOR

Approved as to Form:

      CITY ATTORNEY





City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject: Contract for accounting services
From: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Resolution No. 2016-65:  Approving entering into a contract with Talbot, Korvola & Warwick LLP for
accounting services

BACKGROUND:
In recent years, the Finance Department has prepared the City's fiscal year end financial statements,
utilizing staff accountants and the assistance of a Certified Public Accountant (CPA).  The Finance
Department currently has an open position which will not be filled in time to assist with preparation of the
City's CAFR.

TKW is able to provide accounting services to "back fill" the open position, enabling the City to achieve
succesful completion of the audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.  Due to savings from the open
accountant position, the" not to exceed" amount of $30,000 in TKW's contract is within budgeted
appropriations for the Finance Department.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution approving entering into a contract
with Talbot, Korvola & Warwick for accounting services

Attachments
TKW Resolution 
TKW Contract 



Resolution No. 2016-xx

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 65

A Resolution approving entering into a contract with Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, 
LLP for accounting services

RECITALS:

In recent years, the Finance Department has prepared the City’s fiscal year end 
financial statements, utilizing staff accountants and the assistance of a Certified Public 
Accountant (CPA).  Currently, the Finance Department has an open accountant position 
which will not be filled in time to assist with preparation of the City’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

Therefore, the City requires additional assistance and desires to contract with 
Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP (TKW) to provide this assistance.

TKW has provided audit services to the City in the past and is very familiar with 
the City’s CAFR. TKW’s proposal states that the work related to the engagement will be 
performed primarily by Mr. Rob Moody, Partner, with support from other TKW team 
members as necessary or appropriate.  Mr. Moody is well qualified to provide these 
services.  

Professional accounting services provided by TKW will include performing 
account analyses, preparing workpapers, assisting with drafting the CAFR, and 
supporting Finance Department staff during the independent audit of the financial 
statements.  TKW will work closely with staff and consultants to achieve the successful 
completion of the audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a contract between the City of McMinnville and Talbot, Korvola 
& Warwick, LLP is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract
with Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP. 

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until modified, revoked, or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 13th day of September 2016 by the following votes:

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Approved this 13th day of September 2016.

   MAYOR



Resolution No. 2015 - xx 2

Approved as to Form:

      CITY ATTORNEY



































City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject:
From: Rose Lorenzen, Administrative

Assistant / HR Analyst

AGENDA ITEM:
Citizen Survey Overview and Timeline

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached memorandum from City Manager Martha Meeker

Attachments
National Citizen Survey Memorandum 



City Council - Regular 

Meeting Date:  9/13/2016 

Subject: National Citizen Survey 

From: Martha Meeker, 
City Manager 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM: 

Understanding the needs of our community is crucial to ensuring citizen satisfaction 
with city services.  This is why the city first conducted the “The National Citizen 
Survey” (NCS) in 2011 as it is the gold standard in community assessments with more 
than 350 unique jurisdictions across 44 states utilizing this survey instrument.  The 
NCS gathers resident opinion across a range of community issues allowing 
strengthened communications with community stakeholders and helping leaders 
identify clear priorities for use in strategic planning and budget setting.  It is the only 
citizen survey endorsed by the International City/County Management Association and 
the National League of Cities.  

This fall, the city is scheduled to participate in the NCS again.  Towards this end, 
3,000 citizens have been randomly selected to receive the survey and once we 
receive the results from this statistically valid sample population, the city will then 
open up the survey electronically for anyone to “opt in”.  Also, for our Spanish 
speaking citizens, there will be an option to take a Spanish version of the survey 
online.   

The city is adding one new feature this year that is different from 2011 and that’s the 
“Next Steps Workshop” which is set to delve deeper into how you the Council can use 
the survey data in its strategic planning.  For this, a National Research Center 
representative will come to McMinnville to facilitate a half-day interactive workshop 
and help to develop strategy and offer recommendations. 

Following is a schedule of events supporting the NCS and a copy of the survey 
itself. 



Timeline for The National Citizen Survey™ 

Conducting the survey

 Sep 21 to Oct 5

 Prenotification postcards sent Sep 21

 1st wave of surveys sent Sep 28

 2nd wave of surveys sent Oct 5

 Oct 26

 Sep 28 to Nov 9



 Nov 9

 Nov 9 to Nov 30



 Nov 30

 Dec 7

 Dec 14

Survey materials are mailed

Due to NRC: community feedback on the draft report (most final reports are identical to the draft reports, 

except being labeled as final instead of draft)

NRC emails final report and data file to you

Legend
Indicates when items from NRC are due to you   Indicates when items from you are due to NRC   Indicates information items

Opt-in web survey link posted on your website (source link provided to you by NRC)

Data collection: surveys received and processed for your community

During this time, you will receive postcards that were undeliverable due to bad addresses, or vacant housing units.  This is 

normal.  Please count all the postcards, as we will subtract the number of returned postcards from the total number mailed to 

estimate the number of "eligible" households in calculating the final response rate.

Due to NRC: Final count of returned postcards

Survey analysis and report writing

During this time, NRC will process the surveys, perform the data analysis, and produce a draft report for your community. The 

report of results will contain a description of the methodology, information on understanding the results, and graphs and tables 

of your results, as well as a description of NRC's database of normative data from across the U.S. and actual comparisons to 

your results, where appropriate.

NRC emails draft report (in PDF format) to you along with invoice for balance due on The NCS Basic 

Service and any additional add-on options



The City of  McMinnville 2016 Citizen Survey 

Page 1 of 5 

Please complete this questionnaire if you are the adult (age 18 or older) in the household who most recently had a 
birthday. The adult’s year of birth does not matter. Please select the response (by circling the number or checking the box) 
that most closely represents your opinion for each question. Your responses are anonymous and will be reported in group 
form only. 

1. Please rate each of the following aspects of quality of life in McMinnville: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
McMinnville as a place to live..........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Your neighborhood as a place to live ...............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
McMinnville as a place to raise children ..........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
McMinnville as a place to work .......................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
McMinnville as a place to visit .........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
McMinnville as a place to retire .......................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
The overall quality of life in McMinnville ........................................................1 2 3 4 5 

2. Please rate each of the following characteristics as they relate to McMinnville as a whole: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
Overall feeling of safety in McMinnville ..........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall ease of getting to the places you usually have to visit ...........................1 2 3 4 5 
Quality of overall natural environment in McMinnville ...................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall “built environment” of McMinnville (including overall design,  

buildings, parks and transportation systems) .................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Health and wellness opportunities in McMinnville...........................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall opportunities for education and enrichment ........................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall economic health of McMinnville .........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Sense of community ........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall image or reputation of McMinnville....................................................1 2 3 4 5 

3. Please indicate how likely or unlikely you are to do each of the following: 
 Very Somewhat Somewhat Very Don’t 
 likely likely unlikely unlikely know 
Recommend living in McMinnville to someone who asks ..................... 1 2 3 4 5 
Remain in McMinnville for the next five years ..................................... 1 2 3 4 5 

4. Please rate how safe or unsafe you feel: 
 Very Somewhat Neither safe Somewhat Very Don’t 
 safe safe nor unsafe unsafe unsafe know 
In your neighborhood during the day .................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
In McMinnville’s downtown/commercial  
   area during the day ........................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 

5. Please rate each of the following characteristics as they relate to McMinnville as a whole: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
Traffic flow on major streets ............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of public parking .....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of travel by car in McMinnville ...............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of travel by public transportation in McMinnville ....................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of travel by bicycle in McMinnville ..........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of walking in McMinnville .......................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of paths and walking trails .............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Air quality .......................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Cleanliness of McMinnville .............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall appearance of McMinnville ................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public places where people want to spend time ................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Variety of housing options ...............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of affordable quality housing .........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Fitness opportunities (including exercise classes and paths or trails, etc.)...........1 2 3 4 5 
Recreational opportunities ...............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of affordable quality food ..............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of affordable quality health care ....................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of preventive health services ..........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Availability of affordable quality mental health care ........................................1 2 3 4 5 



 T
he

 N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

  •
  ©

 2
00

1-
20

16
 N

at
io

na
l R

es
ea

rc
h 

C
en

te
r,

 I
nc

. 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 

6. Please rate each of the following characteristics as they relate to McMinnville as a whole: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
Availability of affordable quality child care/preschool .....................................1 2 3 4 5 
K-12 education................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Adult educational opportunities .......................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to attend cultural/arts/music activities ......................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to participate in religious or spiritual events and activities .........1 2 3 4 5 
Employment opportunities ..............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Shopping opportunities....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Cost of living in McMinnville ..........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall quality of business and service establishments in McMinnville .............1 2 3 4 5 
Vibrant downtown/commercial area ...............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall quality of new development in McMinnville .......................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to participate in social events and activities................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to volunteer ...............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to participate in community matters ..........................................1 2 3 4 5 
Openness and acceptance of the community toward people of  

diverse backgrounds .....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Neighborliness of residents in McMinnville......................................................1 2 3 4 5 

7. Please indicate whether or not you have done each of the following in the last 12 months. 
 No Yes 
Made efforts to conserve water ........................................................................................................................... 1 2 
Made efforts to make your home more energy efficient ....................................................................................... 1 2 
Observed a code violation or other hazard in McMinnville (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc.) ........................... 1 2 
Household member was a victim of a crime in McMinnville ............................................................................... 1 2 
Reported a crime to the police in McMinnville ................................................................................................... 1 2 
Stocked supplies in preparation for an emergency .............................................................................................. 1 2 
Campaigned or advocated for an issue, cause or candidate ................................................................................. 1 2 
Contacted the City of McMinnville (in-person, phone, email or web) for help or information ............................. 1 2 
Contacted McMinnville elected officials (in-person, phone, email or web) to express your opinion ..................... 1 2 

8. In the last 12 months, about how many times, if at all, have you or other household members done each of the 
following in McMinnville? 
 2 times a 2-4 times Once a month Not 
 week or more a month or less at all 
Used McMinnville recreation centers or their services .................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Visited a neighborhood park or City park ....................................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Used McMinnville public libraries or their services ......................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Participated in religious or spiritual activities in McMinnville ......................................... 1 2 3 4 
Attended a City-sponsored event .................................................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Used bus, rail, subway or other public transportation instead of driving .......................... 1 2 3 4 
Carpooled with other adults or children instead of driving alone .................................... 1 2 3 4 
Walked or biked instead of driving .................................................................................. 1 2 3 4 
Volunteered your time to some group/activity in McMinnville ...................................... 1 2 3 4 
Participated in a club ...................................................................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Talked to or visited with your immediate neighbors ........................................................ 1 2 3 4 
Done a favor for a neighbor ............................................................................................ 1 2 3 4 

9. Thinking about local public meetings (of local elected officials like City Council or County Commissioners, 
advisory boards, town halls, HOA, neighborhood watch, etc.), in the last 12 months, about how many times, if 
at all, have you or other household members attended or watched a local public meeting? 
 2 times a 2-4 times Once a month Not 
 week or more a month or less at all 
Attended a local public meeting  ..................................................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Watched (online or on television) a local public meeting ................................................. 1 2 3 4  



The City of  McMinnville 2016 Citizen Survey 

Page 3 of 5 

10. Please rate the quality of each of the following services in McMinnville: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
Police/Sheriff services......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Fire services .....................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ambulance or emergency medical services ......................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Crime prevention ............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Fire prevention and education .........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic enforcement .........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street repair ....................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street cleaning .................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street lighting ..................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Snow removal..................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Sidewalk maintenance .....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic signal timing ........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Bus or transit services ......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Garbage collection...........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recycling.........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Yard waste pick-up ..........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Storm drainage ................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Drinking water ................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Sewer services ..................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Power (electric and/or gas) utility ....................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Utility billing ...................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
City parks ........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recreation programs or classes ........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recreation centers or facilities .........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Land use, planning and zoning ........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Code enforcement (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc.)......................................1 2 3 4 5 
Animal control ................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Economic development ...................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Health services ................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public library services ......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public information services ..............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Cable television ...............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Emergency preparedness (services that prepare the community for  

natural disasters or other emergency situations) ............................................1 2 3 4 5 
Preservation of natural areas such as open space, farmlands and greenbelts .....1 2 3 4 5 
McMinnville open space ..................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
City-sponsored special events ...........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall customer service by McMinnville employees (police,  

receptionists, planners, etc.) ............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 

11. Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by each of the following? 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
The City of McMinnville .................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
The Federal Government ................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 

12. Please rate the following categories of McMinnville government performance: 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor Don’t know 
The value of services for the taxes paid to McMinnville ...................................1 2 3 4 5 
The overall direction that McMinnville is taking..............................................1 2 3 4 5 
The job McMinnville government does at welcoming citizen involvement .......1 2 3 4 5 
Overall confidence in McMinnville government ..............................................1 2 3 4 5 
Generally acting in the best interest of the community .....................................1 2 3 4 5 
Being honest ....................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Treating all residents fairly ..............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 



 T
he

 N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

  •
  ©

 2
00

1-
20

16
 N

at
io

na
l R

es
ea

rc
h 

C
en

te
r,

 I
nc

. 

 
 

Page 4 of 5 

13. Please rate how important, if at all, you think it is for the McMinnville community to focus on each of the 
following in the coming two years: 
  Very Somewhat Not at all 
 Essential important important important 
Overall feeling of safety in McMinnville ......................................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Overall ease of getting to the places you usually have to visit .......................................... 1 2 3 4 
Quality of overall natural environment in McMinnville .................................................. 1 2 3 4 
Overall “built environment” of McMinnville (including overall design,  

buildings, parks and transportation systems)  ............................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Health and wellness opportunities in McMinnville.......................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Overall opportunities for education and enrichment ....................................................... 1 2 3 4 
Overall economic health of McMinnville ........................................................................ 1 2 3 4 
Sense of community ....................................................................................................... 1 2 3 4 

14. How much of a priority, if any, should it be for the City to address each of the following in the next five years? 
 High Medium Not a 
 priority priority priority 
Upgrades to public facilities (i.e., public buildings, parking lots, storm water,  
 drainage facilities, etc) .................................................................................................................... 1 2 3 
Improvements to parks and open space ............................................................................................. 1 2 3 
Improvements to public safety facilities (i.e., fire/police) .................................................................... 1 2 3 
Improvements to City streets and sidewalks ....................................................................................... 1 2 3 
Improvements to arts / cultural facilities ............................................................................................ 1 2 3 
Availability of affordable housing ....................................................................................................... 1 2 3 
Downtown improvements .................................................................................................................. 1 2 3 

15. Which of the following projects are you willing to fund with additional taxes (please select all that apply):  
 Street and traffic improvements and maintenance  
 Fire/ambulance services   
 Police services  
 Creating more recreation facilities 
 Downtown improvements 
 Library service 
 Increasing affordable housing 
 None of the above 

16. To increase the availability of housing within McMinnville, how strongly would you support, if at all, 
increasing the density of housing through apartment, condo or townhome developments?  

 Strongly support  Somewhat support  Somewhat oppose  Strongly oppose  Don’t know 

17. Please indicate how much of a source, if at all, you consider each of the following to be for obtaining 
information about the City government and its activities, events and services: 
 Major Minor Not a 
 source source source 
City website (www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov) ....................................................................................... 1 2 3 
Local media outlets (newspapers, radio, local television stations) ........................................................ 1 2 3 
The local government cable Channel (Comcast Channel 11/Frontier Channel 29) ........................... 1 2 3 
City information in the parks & rec brochure or water bill ................................................................. 1 2 3 
City Council meetings and other public meetings .............................................................................. 1 2 3 
Talking with City officials .................................................................................................................. 1 2 3 
City communications via social media (i.e. Facebook, Twitter or YouTube) ...................................... 1 2 3 
Word-of-mouth ................................................................................................................................. 1 2 3 

18. What single community need or issue would you like the City Council to prioritize in the next five years? 
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________   
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

    



The City of  McMinnville 2016 Citizen Survey 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Our last questions are about you and your household. Again, all of your responses to this survey are 
completely anonymous and will be reported in group form only. 

D1.  How often, if at all, do you do each of the following, considering all of the times you could? 
 Never Rarely Sometimes Usually Always 
Recycle at home ...........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Purchase goods or services from a business located in McMinnville ..............1 2 3 4 5 
Eat at least 5 portions of fruits and vegetables a day .....................................1 2 3 4 5 
Participate in moderate or vigorous physical activity ....................................1 2 3 4 5 
Read or watch local news (via television, paper, computer, etc.) ...................1 2 3 4 5 
Vote in local elections ..................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 

D2.  Would you say that in general your health is: 
 Excellent  Very good  Good  Fair  Poor 

D3.  What impact, if any, do you think the economy will have on your family income in the next 6 months? Do you 
think the impact will be: 
 Very positive  Somewhat positive  Neutral  Somewhat negative  Very negative 

 

D4. What is your employment status? 
 Working full time for pay 
 Working part time for pay 
 Unemployed, looking for paid work 
 Unemployed, not looking for paid work 
 Fully retired 

D5.  Do you work inside the boundaries of 
McMinnville? 
 Yes, outside the home 
 Yes, from home 
 No 

D6.  How many years have you lived in McMinnville?  
 Less than 2 years  11-20 years 
 2-5 years  More than 20 years 
 6-10 years 

D7.  Which best describes the building you live in? 
 One family house detached from any other houses 
 Building with two or more homes (duplex, townhome, 

apartment or condominium) 
 Mobile home 
 Other 

D8.  Is this house, apartment or mobile home... 
 Rented 
 Owned 

D9.  About how much is your monthly housing cost 
for the place you live (including rent, mortgage 
payment, property tax, property insurance and 
homeowners’ association (HOA) fees)? 
 Less than $300 per month 
 $300 to $599 per month 
 $600 to $999 per month 
 $1,000 to $1,499 per month 
 $1,500 to $2,499 per month 
 $2,500 or more per month 

D10. Do any children 17 or under live in your 
household? 
 No  Yes 

D11. Are you or any other members of your household 
aged 65 or older? 
 No  Yes 

D12. How much do you anticipate your household’s 
total income before taxes will be for the current 
year? (Please include in your total income money 
from all sources for all persons living in your 
household.) 
 Less than $25,000 
 $25,000 to $49,999 
 $50,000 to $99,999 
 $100,000 to $149,999 
 $150,000 or more 

Please respond to both questions D13 and D14: 

D13. Are you Spanish, Hispanic or Latino? 
 No, not Spanish, Hispanic or Latino 
 Yes, I consider myself to be Spanish, Hispanic 

or Latino 

D14. What is your race? (Mark one or more races 
to indicate what race you consider yourself  
to be.) 
 American Indian or Alaskan Native 
 Asian, Asian Indian or Pacific Islander 
 Black or African American 
 White 
 Other  

D15. In which category is your age? 
 18-24 years  55-64 years 
 25-34 years  65-74 years 
 35-44 years  75 years or older 
 45-54 years 

D16. What is your sex? 
 Female  Male 

D17. Do you consider a cell phone or land line your 
primary telephone number? 
 Cell  Land line  Both  
 
 

Thank you for completing this survey. Please 
return the completed survey in the postage-paid 
envelope to: National Research Center, Inc.,  
PO Box 549, Belle Mead, NJ 08502 



City Council- Regular
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016  
Subject: Cash and Investment Reports
Submitted For: Marcia Baragary, Finance Director  From: Ronda Gretzon

AGENDA ITEM:
Cash and Investment Reports - May and June 2016

BACKGROUND:
Cash and Investment Reports - May and June 2016

Attachments
Cash and Investment Report - May 2016 
Cash and Investment Report - June 2016 



CITY OF MCMINNVILLE  -  CASH AND INVESTMENT BY FUND
May 2016

GENERAL OPERATING

FUND # FUND NAME CASH IN BANK INVESTMENT TOTAL

01 General $353,998.91 $8,273,240.68 $8,627,239.59

05 Special Assessment 417.30 155,618.82 156,036.12

07 Transient Lodging Tax 767.07 39,000.00 39,767.07

10 Telecommunications 636.75 1,030.00 1,666.75

15 Emergency Communications 516.66 177,094.81 177,611.47

20 Street (State Tax) 944.81 1,919,847.73 1,920,792.54

25 Airport Maintenance 737.47 785,749.03 786,486.50

40 Public Safety Facility Construction 883.65 10,805.24 11,688.89

45 Transportation 316.79 18,023,822.44 18,024,139.23

50 Park Development 849.70 1,196,689.39 1,197,539.09

58 Urban Renewal 0.72 0.00 0.72

59 Urban Renewal Debt Service 134.50 178,442.26 178,576.76

60 Debt Service 381.95 1,743,251.21 1,743,633.16

70 Building 682.93 670,000.00 670,682.93

75 Sewer 291.99 1,458,218.90 1,458,510.89

77 Sewer Capital 827.71 15,562,103.65 15,562,931.36

79 Ambulance 895.55 551,835.28 552,730.83

80 Information Systems & Services 209.19 197,713.61 197,922.80

85 Insurance Reserve 349.16 1,227,290.54 1,227,639.70

CITY TOTALS 363,842.81 52,171,753.59 52,535,596.40

MATURITY 

DATE INSTITUTION TYPE OF INVESTMENT

INTEREST 

RATE  CASH VALUE 

N/A Key Bank of Oregon Checking & Repurchase Sweep Account 0.15% 363,842.81$       

N/A Key Bank of Oregon Money Market Savings Account 0.02% 8,502,414.34$    

N/A State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 0.78% 26,094,573.88

N/A State of Oregon Park Improvement Bonds  (LGIP) 0.78% 835,566.97

N/A State of Oregon Transportation Bond (LGIP) 0.78% 16,166,854.10

N/A MassMutual Financial Group Group Annuity 3.00% 572,344.30

52,535,596.40$  

G:\CLOSING\2015-16\CashRpt CityCcouncil 15-16 9/7/2016  7:48 AM



CITY OF MCMINNVILLE  -  CASH AND INVESTMENT BY FUND
June 2016

GENERAL OPERATING

FUND # FUND NAME CASH IN BANK INVESTMENT TOTAL

01 General $492,774.49 $6,932,263.28 $7,425,037.77

05 Special Assessment 483.37 154,618.82 155,102.19

07 Transient Lodging Tax 128.15 (3,000.00) (2,871.85)

10 Telecommunications 637.61 1,030.00 1,667.61

15 Emergency Communications 873.43 112,094.81 112,968.24

20 Street (State Tax) 534.93 1,981,864.63 1,982,399.56

25 Airport Maintenance 790.78 753,749.03 754,539.81

40 Public Safety Facility Construction 97.29 6,805.24 6,902.53

45 Transportation 743.67 17,917,367.07 17,918,110.74

50 Park Development 266.92 1,206,277.50 1,206,544.42

58 Urban Renewal 408.87 34,000.00 34,408.87

59 Urban Renewal Debt Service 439.71 172,851.38 173,291.09

60 Debt Service 610.75 1,807,745.88 1,808,356.63

70 Building 888.69 688,000.00 688,888.69

75 Sewer 614.36 1,431,438.86 1,432,053.22

77 Sewer Capital 139.53 15,631,103.65 15,631,243.18

79 Ambulance 552.38 594,835.28 595,387.66

80 Information Systems & Services 996.21 210,713.61 211,709.82

85 Insurance Reserve 706.33 1,330,290.54 1,330,996.87

CITY TOTALS 502,687.47 50,964,049.58 51,466,737.05

MATURITY 

DATE INSTITUTION TYPE OF INVESTMENT

INTEREST 

RATE  CASH VALUE 

N/A Key Bank of Oregon Checking & Repurchase Sweep Account 0.15% 502,687.47$       

N/A Key Bank of Oregon Money Market Savings Account 0.02% 8,502,553.72$    

N/A State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 0.88% 25,094,876.05

N/A State of Oregon Park Improvement Bonds  (LGIP) 0.88% 827,273.58

N/A State of Oregon Transportation Bond (LGIP) 0.88% 15,967,205.19

N/A MassMutual Financial Group Group Annuity 3.00% 572,141.04

51,466,737.05$  

G:\CLOSING\2015-16\CashRpt CityCcouncil 15-16 9/7/2016  7:48 AM


	Agenda
	AI_1151__1151
	ATT_Summary Memorandum
	AI_1131__1131
	ATT_May 24, 2016 Minutes
	AI_1147_Municipal Advisory Services
	ATT_Western Financial Resolution
	ATT_WFG Engagement Letter
	AI_1134__1134
	AI_1133__1133
	AI_1135__1135
	ATT_Bag it Better 9-13-2016 PDF
	AI_1148_Express Employment Professionals contract
	ATT_Express Resolution
	ATT_Express Employment Contract
	AI_1149_Contract for accounting services
	ATT_TKW Resolution
	ATT_TKW Contract
	AI_1136__1136
	ATT_National Citizen Survey Memorandum
	AI_1146_Cash and Investment Reports
	ATT_Cash and Investment Report - May 2016
	ATT_Cash and Investment Report - June 2016

